
TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY BOARD 
Metropolitan Council, 390 Robert Street North, Saint Paul, Minnesota 55101 

 
 

NOTICE OF A MEETING 
of the 

FUNDING AND PROGRAMMING COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday, March 15, 2012 
1:30 P.M. – Metropolitan Council, Room LLA 

390 Robert Street N, Saint Paul, MN 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
I. Call to Order 
 
II. Adoption of Agenda 
 
III. Approval of the Minutes from the February 16, 2012 Meeting – Action Item* 
 
IV. TAB Report (Kevin Roggenbuck) – Information Item 

 
V. Scope Change request for SP#145-010-010: TH 149 Reconstruction from TH 55 to I-494 – Action 

Item* 
 

VI. 2012-2015 TIP Amendment Request from MnDOT to add SP#s: 13-00001, 27-00306, 27-00307, 62-
00206, 62-00207: Rail Crossings Projects – Action Item* 
 

VII. 2012-2015 TIP Amendment Request for cost increase on Maplewood SP#138-010-018: TH36/English 
Street Interchange – Action Item 
 

VIII. Adoption Schedule for 2013-2016 Transportation Improvement Program – Action Item* 
  
IX. Other Business 
 
X. Adjourn 



DRAFT 

TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY BOARD 
Metropolitan Council 

390 N. Robert St., St. Paul, Minnesota 55101-1805 
 

Minutes of a Meeting of the 
FUNDING AND PROGRAMMING COMMITTEE 

February 16, 2012 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Karl Keel (Chair), Greta Alquist, Carl Ohrn, Craig Jenson, Joe Lux, 
Ted Schoenecker, Colleen Van Wagner, Brian Isaacson, Kate Garwood, Adam Harrington, 
Jenifer Hager, Jennifer Levitt, John Powell, Richard McCoy, John Sass, Chuck Ahl, Innocent 
Eyoh, Lyndon Robjent, Susan Moe, Kevin Roggenbuck, and James Andrew 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: Chuck Rickart – WSB & Associates, Wayne Houle – Edina, Scott Neal – 
Edina, Steve Michaud – Lakeville, Chuck Ballentine – Hennepin County, Jon Solberg - MnDOT 
 
I. Call to Order 
 
The meeting was called to order at 1:30 p.m. 
 
II. Adoption of Agenda 
 
K. Keel announced the amended agenda. C. Ahl moved to approve the agenda as 
amended. J. Powell seconded the motion. The motion carried. 
 
III. Approval of the Minutes from the January 19, 2012 Meeting – Action Item 
 
C. Ahl moved to approve the minutes. J. Powell seconded the motion. The motion 
carried. 
 
IV. TAB Report (Kevin Roggenbuck) – Information Item 
 
TAB met the previous day. The TAB heard a report from the Executive Committee on 
the status of local projects falling behind in the TIP. They would like to have a similar 
report on the status of the local projects after the March program review. TAB agreed to 
reassess the regional solicitation process more than in typical years.  Arlene McCarthy, 
Pat Bursaw and Kevin Roggenbuck agreed to work on a scope of work for this effort. 
The TAB also heard a presentation on the transit governance report from the legislative 
auditor. TAB approved the scope change request and all five sunset date extension 
requests and reversed the TAC recommendation by granting the City of Anoka a sunset 
date extension on the parking garage. TAB also approved the MPCA request for the 
electric vehicle stations using the unspent funds balance. Greg Coughlin discussed the 
additional funding coming to the region for additional year because of the lack of federal 
earmarks. The committee discussed how to program the funding and agreed to more fully 
fund projects already in the TIP. 
 

1 
 



DRAFT 

C. Ahl asked if the City of Anoka had more progress on securing a local match for the 
parking structure. K. Roggenbuck reported that the City did say they were going to try to 
put together funds from the Anoka County Rail Authority. 
 
V. Scope Change and Sunset Date Extension Request for Edina SP#120-020-037: France 

Avenue/72nd Street Pedestrian Bridge – Action Item 
 
Scott Neal, City Manager of Edina, began the City’s presentation. The reason for the request is 
that there has been quite a bit of change in staffing and planning efforts since the time of the 
application. The City believes it can accomplish the important attributes of the ped/bridge project 
by taking a different approach to use the same funding to enhance at-grade crossings of France 
Avenue in the vicinity of the proposed bridge. The trail that was going to connect to the bridge 
ended up using a different route. The City is also pursuing a complete streets approach to 
ped/bike needs throughout the city and this new project proposal is more in line with that 
approach. 
 
Chuck Rickart from WSB associates presented the details of the proposed project. He stated that 
the pedestrian bridge would not be used as much as improved intersections because it is too far 
away from the major destinations for pedestrians. The project includes three intersection 
improvements in lieu of the bridge. They will narrow the lanes, provide median refuge islands, 
pedestrian push buttons, enhanced pedestrian refuge areas at the corners, and bicycle detection on 
70th Street. The new project proposal is supported by Hennepin County and Metro Transit. The 
corridor study that Hennepin County completed of France Avenue was the impetus for these 
recommendations. 
 
Construction plans have not been completed thus far, but Mr. Rickart believed that they have 
completed 30% plans. C. Van Wagner asked if the bicycle facilities are on-road facilities. Most of 
the red lines are sidewalks, and bike lanes are on 70th Street. CV: ADT on France is 28,000, 
posted speed is 35 mph. What lane widths? There was a question that the new project would still 
result in a crossing that is ominous for pedestrians because the ADT and speeds do not change 
and the sidewalks are still narrow. 
 
A. Harrington stated that he thinks it is a great idea to keep pedestrian safety improvements at the 
street level rather than a bridge, which are proven to only be effective when part of a larger 
bicycle trail system. However, he thought that the refuge islands should be bigger in order to be 
truly effective. He asked if the signal cycle time would change to allow for a full crossing. Mr. 
Rickart stated that the City has not begun negotiating with the County about the signals but that 
this is an important part of this work. He added that the City wants to get a minimum of ten feet 
for the refuge islands. 
 
C. Ohrn asked why it took so long for the City to come to the F&P Committee with a scope 
change request when the County study on the road was completed in 2009. Scott Neal stated that 
the people who advocated for the original project were not able to get the necessary support from 
the transportation commission that they thought they had. Soon after the award, discussions about 
what to do started to change. He said there has been a lot of turnover in City staff since then and 
that he himself has only been working with the City for less than a year. C. Orhn then asked if the 
City considered withdrawing this project and resubmitting it in the most recent solicitation. Mr. 
Neal stated that this was not considered. 
 

2 
 



DRAFT 

K. Keel asked if this project would also serve bicyclists as well as the original. G. Alquist 
followed up with this and asked how many bicycle routes exist that would use the three 
intersections. Mr. Rickart explained that there is an existing bicycle route on 70th Street with a  
striped bike lane, 66th Street is a primary route on which the City is preparing a bike boulevard 
but 76th Street is not a bike route. G. Alquist then asked what this project would do to help 
bicyclists using those routes to cross France Avenue since they are on-road routes. Mr. Rickart 
stated that they would have the same signal timing benefits as pedestrians. He said they could 
consider striping across the intersection to the other sides to make bicycle movements more clear. 
G. Alquist stated that the pedestrian benefits appear to be better than the original proposal but she 
was concerned that there are not obvious improvements for bicyclists from this project. Public 
Works Director Wayne Houle stated that they are working on several bicycle crossings of France 
Avenue as part of the Bicycle Plan for the Edina. They are pursuing a strategy of providing loop 
detectors for bicycles that would be part of this project. He also explained that 70th Street 
continues to be bicycle friendly on the east side of France Avenue and that it connects to the 
Promenade to Centennial Lakes and the Richfield trail system. 
 
C. Ahl questioned whether this could be accomplished in one year when it is clear that there is 
still planning left to do. The City Manager stated that the City is confident it can accomplish it in 
one year. 
 
There was a discussion about how far from the original construction project is reasonable when 
granting scope change requests. This project includes entirely different construction elements 
from the original and is essentially an entirely new project. There was some discussion of whether 
this project provides as much safety benefit as the original since bicyclists are not getting a 
separate facility. G. Alquist felt that the safety aspect is debatable because the new proposal 
provides better network connectivity and when there are pedestrian bridges that do not lead 
directly to the destination, people will cross at-grade instead. 
 
There were a few statements to the effect that the committee should have heard about this project 
last year regardless of whether the new proposal is a better project or not. 
 
On the safety issue, J. Sass felt that this project did not provide as much of a safety benefit 
because it does nothing to prevent right-turn crashes and he questioned whether the County would 
allow for pedestrian actuation because it would lead to a traffic breakdown on such a busy route.  
 
G. Alquist moved to approve the scope change request and concurrent sunset date extension 
request. C. Ahl seconded the motion. C. Ahl further explained that he was comfortable with the 
answer that the City Manager gave on being able to complete the project and believed that the 
City had done careful consideration of this project and identified a better solution to the original. 
C. Orhn spoke against the motion because it was so late in the process to be asking for a sunset 
date extension with no plans submitted and that he was not convinced that the City was unable to 
work on this earlier.  K. Keel stated his support for the motion because he felt that the City had 
done a considerable amount of redesign work and that this project is better for pedestrians than 
the original. S. Moe stated that if this change is granted it would be for a new project and not a 
scope change since the project elements are so different. The committee voted on the motion. 8 
voted in favor of the motion, 10 voted against. The motion did not carry. 
 
VI. Scope Change Request for Lakeville SP#188-118-004: Lake Marion Trail – Action Item 
 
Steve Michaud, Lakeville Director of Parks and Recreation, presented the request. He stated that 
the City hoped to construct this in 2012. The only difference between the original project scope 

3 
 



DRAFT 

and the new proposal is that the piece along the bluff will now be constructed along 195th street 
and without any right of way acquisition. 
 
L. Robjent moved to approve the scope change request and concurrent TIP amendment. J. Powell 
seconded the motion. The motion carried. 
 
S. Moe asked for a clarification on the cost change. Mr. Michaud explained that the City was 
awarded $1 million in federal funds and the new scope only requests $826,000 in federal funds. 
 
VII. 2012-2015 TIP Amendment Request from Hennepin County to add Section 5309 FTA 

Discretionary Funding from TIGER III to construct the Transportation Interchange 
Facility – Action Item 

 
This project needs to be identified in the TIP for Hennepin County to be able to have access to 
TIGER III funds it was awarded toward construction of the transportation interchange in 
Minneapolis. C. Ohrn moved to approve the TIP amendment. T. Schoenecker seconded the 
motion. The motion carried. 
 
VIII. 2012-2015 TIP Amendment Request from MnDOT SP#164-070-025: Nice Ride 

Expansion, St Paul Capitol Complex and State Offices – Action Item 
 
Jon Solberg from MnDOT presented the request. This TIP amendment is the result of the 
MnDOT Programming Committee to award Commissioners Opportunity Funds to this project 
that has a substantial match from the Minnesota Management and Budget Office and Blue Cross 
Blue Shield.  
 
C. Ahl moved to approve the TIP amendment. C. Ohrn seconded the motion. The motion 
carried. 
 
IX. Programming Challenges, Sunset Date Extension Policy – Discussion Item 
 
Brian Isaacson distributed a sheet that described the status of projects affecting program 
deliverability. Many local projects are slipping into the next program year and there does not 
appear to be enough MnDOT projects available to fill the amount available to the region from its 
obligating authority for 2012. The committee began discussion about revisiting the sunset date 
policy since so many projects are slipping into their sunset year and many are easily given sunset 
date extensions. There are currently no major incentives or penalties built into the process for 
local project sponsors to deliver their projects on time. Opinions were expressed that the sunset 
date policy should be discussed but it should not be changed until we have figured out what the 
problem is. An option that merited consideration was looking at swapping federal funds with 
local funds. MnDOT was prepared to bring in an analysis of projects that have been slipping for 
the TAC to consider. 
 
X. Regional Solicitation Scoring Results – Information Item 
 
J. Andrew distributed the draft scores for the Regional Solicitation. Applicants have until March 9 
to request a reevaluation of any scores. The scores will be finalized at the April Funding & 
Programming Committee meeting and forwarded on to TAC and TAB in May for consideration. 
 
XI. TAB Direction on Use of Additional Federal Funding – Discussion Item 
 

4 
 



DRAFT 

5 
 

K. Roggenbuck briefly discussed the TAB decision on putting more federal funds on projects 
already programmed in the TIP. He said that the TAB will want options at a later date. They 
emphasized job creation as a major criterion for spending additional federal funds. 
  
XII. Other Business 
 
There was no other business. 
 
XIII. Adjourn 
 
The meeting adjourned at 3:35 p.m. 
 
 
Submitted by: 
James Andrew 





Karl Keel, PE  2 March 2, 2012 

were additional studies that examined proposed land use impacts on the supporting roadway 
system and consistently indicated the need for this section of TH 149 to be upgraded to a six-lane 
facility. The North-South Corridor Travel Demand Study (July 2007) and Regional Roadway 
System Visioning Study (August 2010) were regional transportation studies involving the 
adjacent communities, Dakota County, MnDOT, Metropolitan Council and FHWA to develop a 
coordinated plan to handle future growth, balance impacts and provide an overall transportation 
system that supports regional, as well as local transportation needs. 

 
REQUESTED CHANGE OF SCOPE 
The City of Eagan has been working closely with MnDOT, the agency with jurisdiction over  
TH 149, to fine tune the project scope. In February 2011, the City of Eagan and MnDOT met to 
discuss how to move forward with the identified federal funding for the TH 149 corridor. In 
order to determine the appropriate design section for the study corridor, additional analyses were 
completed (see Attachment C: Current Transportation Improvement Studies). The TH 149 
Corridor Study – 2030 Traffic Forecast Volumes (February 2011) re-evaluated existing peak 
hour intersection volumes and 2030 traffic forecasts from past transportation studies to confirm 
future needs for the corridor. There was a variation in current and future volumes from multiple 
studies recently conducted in the area and it was important to revisit all available data.  
 
The next step in the City’s updated effort included an operations analysis of the confirmed traffic 
forecasts. The TH 149 Corridor Study – Traffic Operations Analysis (March 2011) involved a 
2030 operations analysis to determine what specific improvements are necessary to 
accommodate future growth in traffic. Instead of considering a typical widening of a four-lane 
roadway to six lanes, the updated operations analysis took a closer look at the directional peak 
hour volumes and critical lane movements to determine where the additional capacity was 
needed. As a result of this work, it was determined that a five-lane section (three northbound and 
two southbound through lanes) is the design concept for the project currently scheduled in fiscal 
year 2013. With their involvement in the additional analyses, the modified scope and proposed 
design concept is strongly supported by MnDOT staff.  
 
The change in scope for the TH 149 reconstruction project, from that described in the original 
funding application, not only responds to the transportation needs for the study area but also 
provides an opportunity to reduce its overall impact and cost.  
 
 
MODIFIED PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND COST ESTIMATE 
As previously mentioned, the modified project includes the reconstruction of TH 149 from a 
four-lane to a five-lane facility with three northbound and two southbound through lanes from 
TH 55 to the I-494 north ramps (see Attachment A, Figure 2: Proposed Improvements). Other 
project elements that are consistent with the original 2009 grant application include rebuilding 
four traffic signals and construction of a multiuse trail on the west side of the roadway.  
 
As previously mentioned, the STIP has $3,162,000 in federal funding scheduled for TH 149 
improvements in fiscal year 2013. In order to be consistent with the reduced scope and proposed 
design concept, a more refined construction cost estimate was developed.  
 



Karl Keel, PE  3 March 2, 2012 

An area of focus in the refined cost estimate included impacts to the existing traffic signals. Due 
to the roadway widening, modifications to medians/islands and the addition of a trail, there will 
be significant impacts to the four in-place traffic signals along TH 149. To better understand if 
the proposed project would necessitate traffic signal system revisions versus replacements, a 
meeting was held with MnDOT staff in February 2012 to review the status of the in-place 
equipment and other planned system upgrades. MnDOT staff informed us that arterial 
management system improvements in this area are programmed for July 2013, including camera 
installation, conduits, fiber, controllers, and Ethernet equipment. 
 
MnDOT has two of the signals programmed for replacement along TH 149 at the I-494 north and 
south ramp terminals for construction in Spring 2015, coupled with programmed lane additions 
to the north ramp. Our goal is to incorporate these two signal replacements and the north ramp 
improvements under the TH 149 reconstruction project as planned. Although MnDOT does not 
have plans to rebuild the two signal systems at Northwest Parkway and Lone Oak Parkway, it 
was agreed that due to the age of these systems, and the inherent impacts associated with the 
improvements, the most cost-effective approach would be to fully replace these two signal 
systems under the TH 149 reconstruction project. Therefore, the cost of four traffic signal 
replacements is accounted for in the refined cost estimate. Note that the construction cost 
estimate also includes a line item for temporary signal systems at each location. These systems 
may be needed to safely and efficiently control traffic during the construction of the project. 
However, this need will be determined during the design process.   
 
As shown in Table 1, the revised cost estimate for the project is estimated at $2,683,000. This 
updated cost estimate was developed by using simple area and volume calculations, lump sums, 
and percent of construction cost. Based on updated information and additional details, this cost 
estimate better represents the proposed improvements associated with the TH 149 reconstruction 
project. The City of Eagan expects to maintain the 80/20 cost split. 
  



Karl Keel, PE  4 March 2, 2012 

 
Table 1 
Revised Cost Estimate 

Project Element Cost 
Mobilization $75,000 
Removals $75,000 
Roadway (grading & borrow) $24,000 
Roadway (aggregate & paving) $360,000 
Storm sewer $125,000 
Ponds $75,000 
Concrete items (curb & gutter, sidewalk, medians) $195,000 
Pedestrian curb ramps (ADA) $6,000 
Path/trail construction $55,000 
Traffic control $75,000 
Striping $5,000 
Signing $35,000 
Lighting $125,000 
Turf (erosion & landscaping) $9,000 
Temporary traffic signals (4) $400,000 
Permanent traffic signals (4) $800,000 
Contingencies (10%) $244,000 
Total $2,683,000 

 
 

IMPROVED COST EFFECTIVENESS 
Although the project scope has changed, the benefits achieved through the construction of this 
project remain similar to its original scope. A review of the 2009 federal funding application for 
TH 149 was completed. It has been determined that the revised TH 149 improvement project 
from TH 55 to the I-494 north ramps continues to provide similar and improved benefits when 
compared to the original project scope: 

• The intent of the project continues to remain the same. The proposed project implements 
a solution to a transportation problem identified in the City of Eagan’s Comprehensive 
Plan, Capital Improvement Plan, Regional Roadway System Visioning Study, and several 
other studies.  

• The definition and characteristics of TH 149 as a Reliever route has not changed. 

• For the Reliever, the crash reduction on TH 149 will need to be recalculated. However, 
the total crash reduction is expected to be similar since the majority of the crashes on the 
TH 149 corridor involve vehicles traveling in the northbound direction. In addition, a 
signal rebuild improvement (with the add lane improvement) can be used in place of the 
T-intersection improvement, which has a higher percent change in crash reduction. 

  





 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
Figures 



?ØA@

?ØA@

?tA@

%&c(

%&f(

G{WX

G}WX

G²WX

GÉWX

?tA@

MENDOTA HEIGHTS

E A G A N

Dodd Rd
Northw e st P

kwySP 195-010-010

Inver
Grove

Heights

Sunfish
Lake

Bur
Oaks
Park

Lexington
Park

Thresher
Fields
Park

Mckee St

W Blue Gentian Rd

Rolling Hills Dr

Mendota Heights Rd

Azt
ec 

La

Lone Oak Rd

Cheri La

Hampshire Dr

Pueblo La

Abbey Way

Sw
an 

Dr

1st 
St

A p
ach

e St

O Neill Rd

Bluebill Dr

Eag
and

ale 
Blvd

Wagon Wheel Tr

Lake Dr

CR-28

Huber Dr

Chapel La

Cullen St

Erl
en

e R
d

Monet Ct

Re
d O

ak Dr

Northland D r
Ham

pto
n Dr

Bla
ck 

O a
k D

r

J oyc e Ct
Sall y Cir

Town Center Dr

Northwood Pkwy

Apollo Rd Lun
ar 

La

Ol e ary La

Keefe St

Argenta Tr W

Dodd Rd

N eil 
Arm

strong Blvd

77th St W

Kenneth St
Beatrice St

Whi tfi
eld 

Dr

Pag
el R

d

Lon e Oa
k C

ir

Gemini Rd

Hi l lside Dr

We scott Sq

Wa ters Rd

Charlto n R
d

Lex
ing

ton 
Ave

Courthouse La

Mike Col lin
s D

r

Dis

covery Dr

Ivy La

Me

dallion Dr

De
law

are 
Ave

S alem Church Rd

Commers Dr

Lone Oak Pkw y

Golfview Dr

Grieve Glen

Blue Gentian Cir

Yankee Doodle Rd

Lone Oak DrW Ser vice 
Rd

Aldrin Dr

70th St W

Figure 1

J:\M
ap

s\6
716

\mx
d\f

igu
re1

_p
roj

ect
loc

atio
n.m

xd

Project Location
TH 149 Improvement Project
SP 195-010-010
City of Eagan, Minnesota

Project 
Location

´0 500 1,000

Feet



I
N

T
E

R
S

T
A

T
E

 4
9
4

S
.E

. 
R

A
M

P

O
’ N

E
IL

 R
O

A
D

N
O

R
T

H
W

E
S

T
P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

L
O

N
E

 O
A

K
P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

T
.H

. 
5
5

N
.E

. 
R

A
M

P

T.H. 149 N. T.H. 149 N.

B
L

U
E

 G
E

N
T

IA
N

 R
O

A
D

FUTURE WB

FREE RIGHT

H
:\

P
r
o
je

c
ts

\6
7
1
6
\H

I
-
M

U
\G

r
a
p
h
ic

s
\6

7
1
6
_
g
r
b
.d

g
n

TH 149 Improvement Project

Proposed Improvements - REVISED - FEBRUARY 2012
Figure 2

S.P. 195-010-010

City of Eagan, Minnesota

LC

THRU

14.0’

THRU

12.0’

2.0%2.0%

SHLD

10.0’

4.0%

LC

THRU

12.0’

THRU

14.0’

THRU

12.0’

2.0% 2.0%

SHLD

10.0’

4.0%2.0% 4.0%

BLVD

10.0’

V
A

R (1:4)

(OR FLATTER)

S.B. T.H. 149 N.B. T.H. 149

VAR.

MEDIAN

2.0%

10.0’

TRAIL

2.0%

10.0’

BLVD.

V
A

R (1
:4

)

(O
R FLATTER)

C&GC&G C&GC&G

2.0’

T.H. 149 FROM T.H. 55 TO SOUTH RAMP I-494

250

scale in feet

50

LEGEND

PAVED ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS

RAISED CONCRETE MEDIAN

PAVED SHOULDER

BITUMINOUS TRAIL

STORM WATER POND

TURF / GRADING

ESTIMATED WETLAND BOUNDARY

EXISTING RIGHT OF WAY

NEW / REVISED TRAFFIC SIGNAL



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT B 
Related Transportation Studies 



































Dakota County North-South Corridor 

Eagan-Inver Grove Heights

Travel Demand Study 

July, 2007 

Prepared for 

Dakota County 

  City of Eagan 

City of Inver Grove Heights 

Prepared by 

SRF Consulting Group, Inc. 

SRF No.  0065826 



Gr
ap

hic
 S

up
po

rt/5
82

6/F
igu

res
/58

26
-Fi

gu
res

VE
R.

qx
d

Figure 1

?A3

ST28

+,52

?A55

!"#494

!"#35E

ST12

GH28

GH26 GH26

ST43

GH73

ST63

GH43

GH32

ST45

GH71

GH30

?A110

GH30

GH73

GH31

GH32

GH63

?A3

GH43

GH26

GH14

ST8

?A13

?A149

?A149

?A55

GH31

GH31

?A3

?A110

Northeast Eagan
Development

Northwest Inver
Grove Heights
Development

Lack of Trunk Highway
North/South Capacity

Northwest Inver
Grove Heights
Development

(127,600 New Trips
Per Day by 2030)

Severe
Congestion

at TH 55
(2030 Volume
of 72,000 vpd)

Severe
Congestion
on TH 149

(2030 Volume
of 50,000 vpd)

Severe Congestion
on TH 55/TH 149
Common Areas
(2030 Volume
of 74,200 vpd)

New Development
in Northeast Eagan
 (74,500 New Trips
Per Day by 2030)

LEGEND

Potential Improvements

Future Severe Congested Areas

North/South Trunk Highways

KEY FINDINGS AND ISSUES MAP
Dakota County North-South Corridor Study
Dakota County, MN



 

 

 

   

 

Regional Roadway 
System Visioning 
Study 
 

prepared for 
Dakota County, Eagan, Inver Grove Heights, Mendota Heights, Sunfish Lake, 
Mn/DOT, Metropolitan Council and FHWA 
 
prepared by 
SRF Consulting Group, Inc. 
 
August 2010 



Figure 1



Regional Roadway System Visioning Study  Page 25  August 27, 2010 
Draft Report 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
The intent of the study is to identify a transportation system plan that can support long‐term growth 
and development in the region, as well as complement and build upon current transportation systems. 
The study area has one of the largest undeveloped areas (approximately 4,300 acres) adjacent to the  
I‐494/I‐694 beltway. This area will develop over time and as a result, add more traffic to the current 
transportation system. In addition, growth is also occurring in surrounding communities, particularly to 
the south and east; this traffic also impacts the transportations system in this area. It is therefore 
important to identify potential improvements needed to support this future growth, as well as ensure 
safe and efficient travel into, through and out of the area. With this plan and subsequent environmental 
studies, the appropriate agencies can work toward implementing improvements over time, as needs 
arise, and as opportunities and funding permit. In addition, the plan will allow for avoidance and 
minimization of property impacts and disruptions in services, especially as development occurs in the 
study area.  

The study recommendations need to be put in the following planning context.  

 The study is not an official environmental study and therefore does not carry any official 
environmental standing. More detailed analysis will need to be done to fully assess 
environmental, design and operational issues in accordance with the National Environmental 
Policy Act (NEPA) and Minnesota Environmental regulations at the time individual projects are 
developed. The study focused on a high‐level screening of environmental elements to identify 
potential environmental issues, including a review of natural wetland inventory, special habitat 
designations and right‐of‐way impacts to residential and commercial properties.   

 While a specific system alternative is identified as an outcome of this study, all of the remaining 
system alternatives (alternatives not selected) will need to be carried into future environmental 
studies to fulfill environmental requirements. However, some of these alternatives may end up 
in a considered, but dismissed narrative. 

 Any changes in interstate access require a significant amount of analysis and study to ensure 
safe and efficient operations of the system. This lengthy process may ultimately determine that 
an additional access may not be warranted, or other modifications of the system may be needed 
in conjunction with access changes. 

The following recommendations have been developed through the involvement of the Cities of Eagan, 
Inver Grove Heights, Mendota Heights, and Sunfish Lake; Dakota County, the Minnesota Department of 
Transportation (MnDOT), the Metropolitan Council, and the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA).  
The recommendations are based on technical analysis, as well as public and committee input.  These 
recommendations constitute a vision for the area transportation system that will allow the system to 
support area growth (as identified in local 2030 Comprehensive Plans) safely and efficiently. 

   



Regional Roadway System Visioning Study  Page 26  August 27, 2010 
Draft Report 
 

The following key improvements that constitute the vision are listed below and shown in  
Figure 15: 

a. Lone Oak Road (CSAH 26) – expand 2 to 4 lanes from TH 55 to Athena Way (where it is 
currently 4 lanes). 

b. 65th Street – extend from Babcock Trail to Lone Oak Point. 

c. CSAH 28 Realignment north of TH 55. 

d. TH 3 – expand 2 to 4 lanes from Cliff Road to TH 55. 

e. TH 149 – expand 2 to 4 lanes from TH 3 to Rich Valley Boulevard. 

f. Baffin Trail Realignment – alignment to be determined in future studies. 

g. CSAH 28 Realignment south of TH 55 – connection to Argenta Trail will be determined 
during future studies associated with the installation of a full interchange in the long 
term. 

h. Lone Oak Road (CSAH 26) – expand 4 to 6 lanes from the I‐35E West Ramps to Neil 
Armstrong Boulevard. 

i. TH 55 – expand 4 to 6 lanes from TH 149 south junction to TH 149 north junction. 

j. TH 149 – expand 4 to 6 lanes from TH 55 to I‐494. This project recently received STP 
federal dollars for construction. 

k. TH 3 – consider 2 to 4 lane expansion in the long term from Upper 55th Street to TH 55. 

l. TH 149 Interchange Improvements with I‐494 Mainline between I‐35E and TH 149 – 
additional analysis is needed in an Interstate Access Request (IAR). As part of this study, 
a preliminary analysis was completed to determine how the TH 149 interchange ramps 
are currently being used, in relation to I‐35E and I‐494. Further study is necessary to 
determine the solutions to address the capacity problems at the TH 149 interchange and 
weaving issues between TH 149 and the I‐35E exit. 

m. Delaware Avenue – improvements as required by actual traffic conditions.  Such 
improvements may include turn lanes, shoulders, and trails/sidewalks.  No additional 
through lanes will be required. 

n. New I‐494 Interchange near Argenta Trail – approximately ½ mile east of the existing 
overpass with a configuration to minimize potential impacts to Hornbean Lake on the 
north. Additional analysis is needed in an Interstate Access Request (IAR). 

o. TH 55/Argenta Trail – consider a high‐volume, high‐capacity intersection upgrade, or a 
long‐term interchange at this location.  2030 Comprehensive Plan growth assumptions 
do not reflect a need to separate grades based on traffic volumes.  Buildout traffic 
volumes are borderline.   In the vicinity of TH 55, continue to keep Argenta Trail as the 
through route and CR 28 connection into Argenta Trail (note: this is a change from the 
recommendations of the “County Road 28 Corridor Study” completed in 2000).  Plan for 
an alignment of future CR 28 east of Argenta Trail that would intersect Argenta Trail 
where interchange ramps would be located if an interchange were to be constructed in 
the future.  It is likely that the TH 3 West Ramps would need to be removed, if and when 
a new interchange is constructed. 

mcote
Highlight



Figure 15



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT C 
Current Transportation Improvement Studies 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

SRF No. 0117380 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

TO: Russ Matthys, PE, City Engineer 
 Tim Plath, PE, PTOE, Transportation Engineer 
 City of Eagan 
 
FROM: Marie Cote, PE, Principal 
  
DATE: February 23, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: TH 149 CORRIDOR STUDY – 2030 TRAFFIC FORECAST VOLUMES 
  
 
INTRODUCTION 
SRF has been retained by the City of Eagan to conduct an analysis of the TH 149 corridor from 
Mendota Heights Road to TH 55/TH 149 South. The City was successful in the 2009 federal 
funding solicitation for “A” Minor Arterial Reliever improvements to TH 149. Mn/DOT recently 
conducted the Signal Optimization Project dated October 29, 2010 to ensure optimal 
performance along the TH 149 corridor. The main objective of our analysis is to better 
understand the 2030 traffic volumes for the intersections along TH 149 and confirm future needs 
for the corridor. The results of this analysis will provide the necessary improvement options for 
the City and Mn/DOT to discuss and decide how to move forward with identified funding for the 
TH 149 corridor. This memorandum provides the comparison of current a.m. and p.m. peak hour 
turning movement counts and documentation of 2030 traffic forecast volumes. 
 
 
EXISTING INTERSECTION COUNTS 
The TH 149 Corridor Study focuses on the following signalized intersections: 
 

• TH 149 and Mendota Heights Road 
• TH 149 and I-494 North Ramps 
• TH 149 and I-494 South Ramps 
• TH 149 and Blue Gentian Road/Northwest Parkway 
• TH 149 and Lone Oak Parkway 
• TH 55 and TH 149 North 
• TH 55 and Lone Oak Road 
• TH 55 and TH 149 South 

 
  



R
O

G
E
R

K
R

E
SS

INSW
A

N

C
T.P

U
E
B

LO

MENDOTA HEIGHTS RD.

LA
K

E
  
D

R
.

KENNETH

BEATRICE

McKEE

KEEFE

ST.

ST.

ST.

ST.

LONE OAK RD.

APOLLO   RD.

RITA CT.

JO
Y

C
E

C
T.

D
R

.

ST
.

ST
.

I
N

S

SALLY

R
A

N
D

O
M

RD.

D
O

DD

LA
. LA.

COURT HOUSE

149

55

55

43

RD.

D
O

D
D

R
D

.

149

O'NEILL

D
O

D
D

R
D

.

BL
U
E

GENTIAN

NOR TH WE ST

PAR
KW AY

LO
N
E

OAK

DR.

B
R

I
D

G
E VIEW

CT.

B
R

O
O

K
FI

E
LD

LA
.

LO
N

E

O
AK

P
K

W
Y

.

1
st

1
st

28.

W

A
T E R S RD.

P
A

G
E
L 

 R
D

.

LA.

C
IR

.CIR.

TE
R

.

LO
N

E
O

A
K

PT.

54.

5
5

.

V
IS

IT
A

TI
O

N
D

R
.

C
O

N
D

O
N

LA
.

H
A

Z

E L

CT.

POND HAVEN

M
E
N

D
O

TA
H

TS
.

C
IR

. W
IL

SH
IR

E
C

T.

CONC ORD
WAY

LA.

H
U

B
E
R

H AM PS
H

I RE

T E

H
A

M
P

SH
IR

E C
T.

P
A

R
K

LA
.

53.

LO
C

K
W

O
O

D
D

R
.

H
E
R

I
TA

G
E

D
R

. WHIT
FIELD

LU
N

A
R

LA
.

C
anadian  Pacific

Ra
il  Syste

m

W
E
ST

V
IE

W

MONE

CT.

LA
.

T

GEMINI  RD.

R
O

N
G

B
LV

D
.

C
O

M
M

E
R

S
D

R
.

HAVENVIEW

CT.

LO
N

E
 O

A
K

C
IR

.

BLU
E W

A
TER

RD
.

B
L

U
E

GENTIAN

R
D

.

ADVANT
AGE

LA
.

H
O

L
I

D
A

Y
LA

.

LA.

COURT

CI R.

C
H

A
P EL

HOU S

E

CIR.

0117380
February 2011

Year 2030 Peak Hour Forecast Volumes 
TH 149 Corridor Analysis 
City of Eagan

Figure 7

 
XX

(XX)

 
-   A.M. Peak Hour
-   P
-   Signalized Control

.M. Peak Hour

LEGEND

 (
2

0
5

) 
  

3
2

5

 (
1

2
5

0
) 

1
9

0
0

  
  

  
(7

5
) 

  
2

2
5

 

T
H

 1
4

9
/T

H
 5

5

2
0

0
  

 (
1

7
0

)

1
0

6
0

 (
1

5
0

0
) 

 

) 
2

2
5

  
 (

1
4

0
  

  
 

  
 

  
 

Lone Oak Rd.

(320) 220

(355) 450

(455) 250

240 (225)

215 (500)

75   (300)

 (
8
3
5
) 
1
0
3
0

 (
9
5
) 
  
1
8
5

  
   

 (
1
6
5
) 
  
  
35

 

T
H

 1
49

12
5 

(1
05

)
25

   
(1

15
) 
 

70
) 

35
   

(
  

   

   
   

TH 55

(70)   55
(1210) 350(790) 915

120   (45)1295 (590)
70     (50)

TH 149/TH 55

H
o
lid

ay
 L

n
.

 (
0
) 
0

 (
3
0
) 
5

  
  
  
(1

5
) 
5

 

C
o
m

m
e
rs

 D
r.

19
0 

(2
75

)
20

   
(1

0)
  

74
5)

 

78
0 

(
  

   

   
   

TH 149/TH 55

(200) 265
(1110) 660(10)   30

920   (895)
1455 (830)

5       (5)

TH 55

T
H

 1
4
9

 

 (
1

4
3

5
) 

7
6

0

  
  

  
(7

0
0

) 
1

5
5

 
T

H
 1

4
9

 1
0

1
5

 (
3

7
5

) 
 

1
2

5
) 

7
0

  
  
 (

  

  
 

  
 

  
 

I-494 South Ramp

 

350   (320)

1180 (370)

 

 (
5

5
5

) 
5

5
0

  
  
  
(1

2
0

0
) 

5
6

0

 
T

H
 1

4
9

 3
5

5
 (

3
0

5
) 

 

1
7

5
) 

2
5

0
 (

  

  
 

  
 

  
 

I-494 North Ramp

 

210 (65)

730 (195)

N
O

R
T

H

N
o

rt
h

H
:\
P

ro
je

c
ts

\7
3
8
0
\T

S
\F

ig
u
re

s\
F

ig
0
7
_
2
0
3
0
 T

ra
ff
ic

 V
o
lu

m
e
s.

c
d
r

N
O

R
T

H

N
o

rt
h

 (
1

2
5

) 
4

4
0

 (
3

8
0

) 
2

6
0

  
  
  
(1

1
5

) 
  
6

0

 

T
H

 1
4

9

2
6

0
 (

5
0

)

2
6

0
 (

2
0

0
) 

 

) 
3

0
  
 (

5
5

  

  
 

  
 

  
 

Mendota Heights Rd.

(100)   50

(85)   60

(230) 200

75   (55)

170 (35)

145 (50)

 (
3

0
) 

1
0

0

 (
1

4
2

5
) 

6
7

5

  
  

  
(1

0
0

) 
1

7
5

T
H

 1
4

9

3
4

0
  
 (

7
0

)

1
4

3
5

 (
6

1
5

) 
 

4
2

0
  
 

6
0

) 
(

  

  
 

  
 

  
 

Northwest Pkwy.

(260) 40

(10) 10

(100) 20

155 (250)

10   (10)

50   (125)

 (
3

0
) 

  
3

5

 (
9

6
0

) 
8

5
5

  
  

  
(1

3
5

) 
3

0
0

 

T
H

 1
4

9

9
5

  
 (

2
5

)

9
0

0
 (

7
7

0
) 

 

5
1

0
 

4
5

) 
(

  

  
 

  
 

  
 

Lone Oak Pkwy.

(75) 20

(5) 15

(35) 15

75 (520)

5   (15)

75 (225)



 

 

SRF No. 0117380 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

TO: Russ Matthys, PE, City Engineer 
 Tim Plath, PE, PTOE, Transportation Engineer 
 City of Eagan 
 
FROM: Marie Cote, PE, Principal 
 Joshua Maus, PE, PTOE, Associate 
  
DATE: March 21, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: TH 149 CORRIDOR STUDY – TRAFFIC OPERATIONS ANALYSIS 
  
 
INTRODUCTION 
SRF has been retained by the City of Eagan to conduct an analysis of the TH 149 corridor from 
Mendota Heights Road to TH 55/TH 149 South. The main objective of our analysis is to better 
understand the 2030 traffic volumes along TH 149 and confirm future needs for the corridor. The 
results of this analysis will provide the necessary improvement options for the City and Mn/DOT 
to discuss and decide how to move forward with identified federal funding for the TH 149 
corridor. 
 
The first phase of the study included a review of 2030 daily and peak hour volumes. Updated 
2030 peak hour volumes for the intersections along TH 149 and TH 55 were developed and 
documented in the TH 149 Corridor Study – 2030 Traffic Forecast Volumes memorandum dated 
February 23, 2011. The second phase includes the operations analysis of TH 149 and TH 55 for 
2030 conditions, which is documented in this memorandum. 
 
 
YEAR 2030 NO BUILD CONDITIONS 
Traffic operations were analyzed at the following key intersections: 

• TH 149 and Mendota Heights Road 
• TH 149 and I-494 North Ramps 
• TH 149 and I-494 South Ramps 
• TH 149 and Blue Gentian Road/Northwest Parkway 
• TH 149 and Lone Oak Parkway 
• TH 55 and TH 149 North 
• TH 55 and Lone Oak Road 
• TH 55 and TH 149 South 



Russ Matthys March 21, 2011 
Tim Plath  Page 8 
 
YEAR 2030 RECOMMENDED IMPROVEMENTS 
Results of the operations analysis for the three build alternatives indicate that the Alternative C 
improvements are necessary to accommodate future 2030 traffic volumes and provide acceptable 
a.m. and p.m. peak hour operations. Recommended improvements include: 

• Additional westbound (dual) left-turn lane at TH 149/I-494 North Ramps 

• Additional southbound (dual) left-turn lane at TH 149/Lone Oak Parkway 

• Additional eastbound (dual) left-turn lane at TH 55/TH 149 North 

• Additional southbound, eastbound and westbound (dual) left-turn lanes at TH 55/Lone 
Oak Road 

• Six-lane TH 55 facility between TH 149 North and TH 149 South (through the 
intersections) 

• Three northbound through lanes on TH 149 from Northwest Parkway to the I-494 North 
Ramps 

• Northbound free right-turn lane on TH 149 at I-494 North Ramps, two-lane on ramp to  
I-494 with lane drop prior to curve 

 
Additional improvements to be considered include: 

• Add the third northbound through lane on TH 149 at TH 55 

• Additional westbound (dual) right-turn lanes at TH 149/Northwest Parkway and TH 
149/Lone Oak Parkway 

 
 
FEDERAL FUNDING IMPLICATIONS 
The City was successful in the 2009 federal funding solicitation for  
“A” Minor Arterial Reliever improvements to the TH 149 corridor. Improvements assumed in 
the 2009 application include a six-lane facility (three through lanes in each direction) for TH 149 
from TH 55 to the I-494 North Ramps. Results of this 2030 operations analysis indicate that the 
Alternative C improvements are necessary to accommodate future traffic volumes. For TH 149, 
the improvements assumed under Alternative C are not consistent with the 2009 submittal. 
Therefore, consideration of potential impacts to the awarded funding was conducted to make 
sure the City can move forward with a slightly different improvement project without 
jeopardizing the federal funds already identified for the project. 
 
A review of the 2009 federal funding application for TH 149 was completed. It has been 
determined that the updated improvement project of three TH 149 northbound through lanes 
from Northwest Parkway (or TH 55) with a northbound free right-turn lane at the I-494 North 
Ramps should not risk the identified federal funds based on the following: 

• The intent of the project continues to remain the same. The proposed project implements 
a solution to a transportation problem identified in the City of Eagan’s Comprehensive 
Plan, Capital Improvement Plan, Regional Roadway System Visioning Study, and several 
other studies.  

• The definition and characteristics of TH 149 as a Reliever route has not changed. 



   

Federal STP Funding Application (Form 1) 

INSTRUCTIONS: Complete and return completed application to Kevin Roggenbuck, Transportation 
Coordinator, Transportation Advisory Board, 390 North Robert St., St. Paul, Minnesota 
55101.    (651) 602-1728.  Form 1 needs to be filled out electronically.  Please go to 
Metropolitan Council’s website for instructions.  Applications must be received by 5:00 
PM or postmarked on June 15, 2009.  *Be sure to complete and attach the Project 
Information form.  (Form 2) 

Office Use Only 

I. GENERAL INFORMATION 

1. APPLICANT: City of Eagan 

2. JURISDICTIONAL AGENCY (IF DIFFERENT): Minnesota Department of Transportation 

3. MAILING ADDRESS: 3830 Pilot Knob Road 

    CITY: Eagan STATE: MN ZIP CODE:55122 4. COUNTY: Dakota 

5. CONTACT PERSON: Russ Matthys, P.E. TITLE: City Engineer PHONE NO. 
(651)675-5637 

CONTACT E-MAIL ADDRESS: rmatthys@cityofeagan.com 

II. PROJECT INFORMATION 

6. PROJECT NAME: TH 149 Reconstruction Project 

 

7. BRIEF PROJECT DESCRIPTION (Include location, road name, type of improvement, etc...  A more complete description 
must be submitted separately as described in Specific Requirement #3 on p. 5):  
The proposed project includes expanding TH 149 from a four-lane divided roadway to a six-lane facility.  Improvements 
extend from TH 55 to the I-494 north ramp intersection.  The proposed project also constructs a multi-use trail on the west 
side of the corridor between TH 55 and the north I-494 ramp intersection. 
 

8. STP PROJECT CATEGORY - Check only one project grouping in which you wish your project to be scored. 
 

 "A" Minor Arterials: 
 Reliever  Expander Non-Fwy. Principal Arterial 
  Connector Augmenter Bikeway/Walkway 
   

III. PROJECT FUNDING 

9. Are you applying or have you applied for funds from another source(s) to implement this project?     Yes      No  

If yes, please identify the source(s):       

10. FEDERAL AMOUNT: $2,480,000 13. MATCH % OF PROJECT TOTAL: 20% 

11. MATCH AMOUNT: $620,000 14. SOURCE OF MATCH FUNDS: Local 

12. PROJECT TOTAL: $3,100,000 15. REQUESTED PROGRAM YEAR (CIRCLE):  2013    2014 

16. SIGNATURE 

 

17. TITLE: City Engineer 



 

 7 

 

 

“A” MINOR ARTERIAL - RELIEVER - PRIORITIZING CRITERIA 

 

Applicants must respond to each of the following prioritizing criteria.  Label your responses clearly.  If a 

criterion is not applicable to your project, explain why. 

 

A. Relative importance of the route as an “A” Minor Arterial Reliever. 100 points 

Although all Reliever routes parallel an urban principal arterial, the relative importance of each Reliever 

is not the same.  Some Relievers play a more significant role than others do in providing an alternative 

route for medium distance trips and reducing demand on congested metro area principal arterials.  The 

following criteria are intended to measure the relative importance of each Reliever route submitted for 

funding in this solicitation. 

 

 Definition and characteristics of the Reliever route. 

 

0-100 points The applicant must respond to all three items below and provide a map to help 

answer items a) and b). The Reliever „route‟ is defined as the uninterrupted 

length of the arterial that parallels a principal arterial.  The route may be an 

existing or planned road on the TAB adopted system.  The route may be longer 

than the proposed project and include more than one street name, but it must be 

continuous.  The endpoints of the route must be a principal or other “A” minor 

arterial, and the route cannot be more than eight miles in length.  Two projects on 

the same route will not be selected unless they are at least 3.5 miles apart.  Points 

under this criterion are assigned based on the length of the Reliever route, the 

current and forecasted traffic volume on the Reliever route and the current transit 

ridership on the Reliever route. 

 

For Items a, b and c, please reference Attachment A, Figure 4. 

a) Provide the length of the Reliever route in miles. 

RESPONSE: The length of the reliever route (TH 149) in approximately 3.5 

miles from TH 55 (in the City of Eagan) to TH 110 (in the City of Mendota 

Heights). 

b) Provide the current (2007) and forecasted (2030) average daily traffic 

volume at two or more locations on the Reliever route.  MN/DOT 50-series 

maps should be used for current counts.  Use approved city or county 

comprehensive plans, Met Council, accepted State Aid traffic factors by 

county, or a transportation study with documented acceptable forecasting 

methodology for forecasted volume. 

RESPONSE: According to Mn/DOT‟s MSAS Traffic Volume maps, the current 

(2006) Average Annual Daily Traffic (AADT) on TH 149 between TH 55 

and I-494 is 23,500 vehicles per day.  North of I-494, traffic volumes are 

8,100 vehicles per day. 

 

As part of the City‟s draft 2009 update to the Comprehensive Plan, traffic 

forecasts were developed for 2030 (see Attachment B).  The 2030 forecast 

volume for TH 149 from TH 55 to Northwest Parkway is 32,000 vehicles per 

day.  The 2030 forecast volume for TH 149 from Northwest Parkway to I-

494 is 42,000 vehicles per day. 



 

 8 

 

c) Is public transit currently provided on this Reliever route and its 

corresponding section of Principal Arterial?  If yes, the Metropolitan Council 

will provide the project scorers with current average annual ridership based 

on the project location map and description. 

RESPONSE:  Transit service utilizes TH 149 for access to service points within 

the Grand Oak Business Park and the Water‟s Corporate Complex on both 

sides of TH 149, but does not offer stops along the project corridor.  

Similarly, transit providers utilize the corresponding sections of Principal 

Arterial (TH 55 from TH 149 to I-494 and I-35E from TH 55 to I-494) for 

access to service point while not offering stops along the Principal Arterial 

corridor in these segments. 

 

B. Deficiencies and Solutions on Reliever and on Principal Arterial Being Relieved 350 points 

The regional solicitation process is one means of implementing regional plans. The region's 

Transportation Policy Plan state that the regional highway and street system will be preserved, managed, 

improved and expanded to support existing and planned land uses and safety and mobility needs 

consistent with the Regional Development Framework, the Transportation Policy Plan and approved local 

and county comprehensive plans.  The following criteria reflect these objectives. 

 

 

1. Crash Reduction.    
 

 0-50 points  On the Principal Arterial being relieved: Provide data showing the frequency of 

traffic crashes expressed as crashes per million vehicle miles on the 

corresponding section of principal arterial. The principal arterial being relieved 

should be approximately the same length as the project limits on the reliever.  

Only one principal arterial may be relieved. The applicant must request from 

Mn/DOT Metro Traffic Engineering , the crash rate for the principal arterial 

being relieved.  The rate received from Mn/DOT will include mainline crashes 

only.  Crash rates will be based on TIS data for 2005-2007. 

RESPONSE: Using Mn/DOT‟s TIS system data, the corresponding section of 

TH-55 between TH 149 and I-494 had a total of 38 crashes from January 1, 2005 

through December 31, 2007.  The crash rate for the principal arterial was 1.57 

crashes per million vehicle miles per year (see Attachment E, Principal Arterial 

Crash Analysis). 

0-50 points  On the Reliever: Calculate the total number of crashes reduced due to 

improvements on the „A‟ Minor Arterial Reliever made by the proposed project.  

Points will be awarded based on the total three-year number of crashes projected 

to be reduced by the proposed project.  The applicant must base the estimate of 

crash reduction on the methodology found in Appendix E.  The applicant must 

obtain data on crashes for the existing section scheduled for improvement from 

Mn/DOT‟s TIS system, and must use data from 2005 through 2007. 

RESPONSE: As previously indicated, the proposed improvements to TH 149 are 

intended to increase safety on the corridor.  According to Mn/DOT‟s TIS system 

data from January 1, 2005 to December 31, 2007, there are a total of 57 crashes 

                                                           

 Applicants should request crash data from Mn/DOT as early as possible. An agency that wishes to 

dispute the results of their crash data requests can contact Jolene Servatius at 651-234-7841 (or 

jolene.servatius@dot.state.mn.us) to reconcile those differences. 



 

 9 

 

on TH 149 within the project area (see Attachment E, crash diagrams and TIS 

data listing).  This includes 14 personal injury crashes and 43 property damage 

only crashes.  According to the Mn/DOT factors shown in the calculations below, 

the proposed project would eliminate 33.3 crashes.  This is a 58 percent reduction 

in the number of crashes on the corridor.  Crash calculations are shown below. 

 

Improvements from Mn/DOT‟s “% Change in Crashes” table: 

 

Add Lanes 

-0.50 reduction in fatal and injury crashes 

-0.50 reduction in property damage crashes 

 

T-Intersection Turn Lane 

-0.20 reduction in fatal and injury crashes 

-0.15 reduction in property damage crashes 

 

Fatal and Personal Injury Calculations 

CR = 1- (1-0.5) x (1-0.20) 

CR = 1 – (0.5 x 0.80) 

CR = 0.60 

 

0.60 x 14 (Number of fatal and injury crashes) = 8.4 reduction 

 

Property Damage Calculations 

CR = 1-(1-0.5) x (1-0.15) 

CR = 1-(0.5 x 0.85) 

CR = 0.58 

 

0.58 x 43 (Number of fatal and injury crashes) = 24.9 reduction 

 

Total Crash Reduction 

8.4 + 24.9 = 33.3 crashes reduced 

 

2. Air Quality.  The Transportation Policy Plan strongly supports environmental considerations when 

making transportation funding decisions.  The Council supports funding priorities for transportation 

projects that ensure prevention of air quality violations through the reduction of mobile source 

emissions. 

 
The applicant must show that the project will reduce emissions and help the region to maintain its 
attainment of federal carbon monoxide standards.  All assumptions and calculations must be clearly 
documented and explained in order to receive points.  The applicant must include documentation of 
how the VMT reduction was determined and specify the speed used for the assumptions.  Speed 
assumptions shall be based on the methodology found in Appendix F.  Points under this criterion 
will be awarded based on the reduction of carbon monoxide (CO), nitrogen oxide (NOx), and/or 
volatile organic compounds (VOC) emissions the proposed project is expected to provide. 

 
0-100 points The applicant must demonstrate through a quantitative analysis that CO, NOx, 

and/or VOC emissions (in KILOGRAMS/DAY) will be reduced compared to the 
no-build alternative.  The applicant must estimate CO, NOx, and/or VOC 
emissions reductions using the MOBILE6 emissions factors and vehicle 
emissions reduction worksheet in Appendix G. 



 

 10 

 

RESPONSE:  In order to determine the reduction of emissions, an analysis to determine the 
increase in peak hour speed on TH 149 (Northbound direction during the p.m. peak hour) due to the 
proposed project was conducted. 

 
Details of the analysis are shown below: 
 
Estimated Segment Length = 0.90 mile 
Posted speed limit = 45 mph 
 
Existing Conditions 
4 signalized intersections (2 v/c <0.8 and 2 v/c >0.90) 
Free-flow travel time (minutes) = (0.9 mile/45 mph) x 60 = 1.2 minutes 
Intersection delay = (2 x 75) + (2 x 30) = 210 seconds = 3.5 minutes 
Mid-block delay for right turn movement to eastbound I-494 ramp= 10 seconds = 0.17 minutes 
 
Arterial Speed = (0.9 mile/(3.5 + 1.2 + 0.17 minutes)) x 60 = 11 mph 
 
Proposed Conditions 
4 signalized intersections (3 v/c <0.8 and 1 v/c  0.8 to 0.90) 
Free-flow travel time (minutes) = (0.9 miles/45 mph) x 60 = 1.2 minutes 
Intersection delay = 50 + (3 x 30) = 140 seconds = 2.33 minutes 
Mid-block delay = 0 
 
Arterial Speed = (0.9 mile/(2.33 + 1.2 minutes)) x 60 = 15 mph 

 
Using the MOBILE6 emissions factors and vehicle emissions reduction worksheet (see Attachment E, 
Vehicle Emissions Reduction Worksheet), a quantitative analysis was conducted for emissions for both 
baseline (without project) and build (with project) conditions.  The average speed along TH 149 is 
expected to increase by 3 mph, due to the proposed improvements.  The emissions reduction due to the 
proposed improvements is 135 kilograms/day. 
 

3. Congestion Reduction. 
 

0-75 points  On the Principal Arterial being relieved: The applicant needs to show the hours 

per day the current volume exceeds the design capacity in either direction.  The 

applicant should obtain needed data directly from Mn/DOT or a local data 

source if available, and provide documentation to illustrate accuracy.  To 

calculate existing conditions, the applicant must obtain or collect the average 

hourly, directional traffic volumes on a weekday, the current lane 

configurations, and the current signal timing schemes, if applicable.  Design 

capacity calculations must be based on the definition found in Appendix A. 

RESPONSE: As identified by reports from Mn/DOT, current traffic volumes are within the design 

capacity guidelines of I-35E (six-lane freeway) between TH 55 and I-494. 

 

 0-75  points  On the Reliever: The applicant must show that the proposed project will reduce 

congestion at the most congested location on the Reliever.  The applicant must 

include the current volume to capacity (v/c) ratios in the AM and PM peak hours 

and the improvement in the ratios resulting from the project.  Projects that have 

low existing v/c ratios will receive less credit for the improvement resulting from 

the project than projects that address a problematic existing v/c ratio.  The 

applicant must use the methodology, worksheet and look-up tables found in 



 

 11 

 

Appendix H.  The applicant must conduct a corridor analysis for new alignments, 

comparing parallel routes that will be affected by the project. 

RESPONSE: The intersection of TH 149 and the I-494 South Ramps is currently the most 

congested location in both the a.m. and p.m. peak hours along the project segment.  Details of the 

volume to capacity ratio (v/c) analysis are shown below: 

 

Existing conditions 
Southbound a.m. peak hour volume = 689 

Vehicle capacity = 1500 vph (one left-turn lane, two through lanes) 

A.M. volume/capacity ratio = 689/1500 = 0.46 

 

Northbound p.m. peak hour volume = 1480 

Vehicle capacity = 1400 vph (two through lanes, one right-turn lane) 

P.M. volume/capacity ratio = 1480/1400 = 1.06 

 

Proposed Conditions 
Southbound a.m. peak hour volume = 689 

Vehicle capacity = 2100 vph (one left-turn lane, three through lanes) 

A.M. volume/capacity ratio = 689/2100 = 0.33 

 

Northbound p.m. peak hour volume = 1480 

Vehicle capacity = 2000 vph (three through lanes, one right-turn lane) 

P.M. volume/capacity ratio = 1480/2000 = 0.74 

 

A.M. Improvement in Volume/Capacity Ratio = 046 – 0.33 = 0.13 

P.M. Improvement in Volume/Capacity Ratio = 1.06 – 74 = 0.32 

Total Improvement in Volume/Capacity Ratio = 0.45 

 

 

C. Cost Effectiveness. 275 points 

The Regional Development Framework and Transportation Policy Plan document the need for adequate 

transportation funding to implement regional transportation plans.  The region must allocate 

transportation funds in such a way that the selected projects provide the most benefit for the amount of 

funding requested.  Cost effectiveness is an essential component of the regional solicitation process.  Cost 

effectiveness calculations must be based on the total cost of the project, not just the portion of the project 

eligible for federal funding, in order to allow consistent comparisons of all qualifying projects. 

 

1. Crash Reduction. 

 

0-125 points The applicant must calculate the cost per crash reduced by the proposed project. 

The applicant must divide the total cost of the project by the answer from the 

second part of criterion B.1., crash reduction on the Reliever. 

 

The applicant must obtain data on crashes for the existing section scheduled for 

improvement from MN/DOT's TIS system, and must only use data from 2005 

through 2007.  The applicant must base the estimate of crash reduction on the 

methodology found in Appendix E.  Points will be awarded based on the relative 

cost per crash reduced. 



 

 12 

 

RESPONSE: The proposed improvements will be expected to eliminate 33 crashes per year.  

The total project cost is $3,100,000.  The cost per crash reduced by the proposed project is 

$93,939. 

 

2. Congestion reduction. 

 

0-75 points The applicant must calculate the cost per increase in hourly person throughput 

provided by the proposed improvement.  The applicant must use the worksheet in 

Appendix I.  Points will be awarded based on the lowest cost per increase in 

person throughput, but if there is little congestion under existing conditions fewer 

points will be awarded for increasing person throughput. 

RESPONSE: The hourly throughput in the p.m. peak hour, in the peak direction of travel 

(northbound), at the most congested location (TH 149/I-494 north ramps) was calculated for 

current and proposed conditions.  Details of the analysis are shown below: 

 

Existing Conditions 

Vehicle capacity = 1400 vph (two through lanes, one right-turn lane) 

A.M. peak hour vehicle occupancy = 1.09 

A.M. peak hour bus ridership = 0, assume no increase in service 

Hourly person throughput = 1400 x 1.09 = 1526 pph 

 

Proposed Conditions 

Vehicle capacity = 2000 vph (three through lanes, one right-turn lane) 

A.M. peak hour vehicle occupancy = 1.09 

A.M. peak hour bus ridership = 0, assume no increase in service 

Hourly person throughput = 2000 x 1.09 = 2180 pph 

 

Total Increase in Hourly Person Throughput = 2180 – 1526 = 654 

Cost per Increase in Hourly Person Throughput = $3,100,000/654 = $4,740 
 

3. Air Quality 

 
0-75 points The applicant must calculate the cost per kilogram that will be reduced by the 

proposed project compared to the no-build alternative.  The applicant must use 
the estimated CO, NOx, and/or VOC emissions reductions calculated in 
questions B.3. and divide it into the total project cost.  

RESPONSE: The proposed improvements will be expected to reduce total emissions by 135 
kilograms per day.  The total project cost is $3,100,000.  The cost per kilogram reduced by the 
proposed project is $22,937. 

 
 

D. Development Framework Implementation. 425 points 

The 2030 Development Framework is the initial “chapter” and unifying theme of the Council‟s 

metropolitan development guide. Together with the Council‟s regional policy plans, the Framework is 

intended to help ensure the orderly, economical development of the seven-county area and the efficient 

use of four regional systems: transportation, aviation, water resources (including wastewater collection 

and treatment) and regional parks and open space. The Framework was adopted in January 2004, and 

amended in December 2006.  

 

The Council‟s strategies are organized around four policies: 



 

 13 

 

 Accommodating growth in a flexible, connected and efficient manner.  

 Slowing the growth in traffic congestion and improving mobility.  

 Encouraging expanded choices in housing locations and types.  

 Conserving, protecting and enhancing the region‟s vital natural resources.  

 

Under the Metropolitan Land Planning Act, local communities must prepare and submit to the Council 

local comprehensive plans that are consistent with the Council's regional system plans. The new or 

updated local comp plans were due by the end 2008. Plans submitted for Council review after that date 

but not yet approved by the Council may be used for the purposes of answering these criteria.  

 

1. Development Framework Planning Area Objectives 

 

0-75 points Higher scores will be attributed to projects that demonstrate that the project supports 

Framework Planning Area policy directions and strategies and 2000-2030 forecasts 

reflected in local comprehensive plans (2008 update approved by Council or a plan 

update that is complete for review).  Higher scores will also be given for projects 

that support more intense, mixed-use development (residential, commercial, 

industrial) in centers along transportation corridors. 

 

Applicant provides: 

 

a) Project Area Location (The project area comprises the TAZs in which the 

project is located. Provide a map and identify TAZs in which the project is 

physically located); 

RESPONSE: The project area forms the border between 2000 Met Council TAZs 258 and 259 

with Zone 258 being west of TH 149 and Zone 259 east of TH 149 (see Figure 5, Attachment A). 

 

b) Identify what the Framework Planning Designation for the Project Area and 

how the project supports Framework strategies for the planning area (see 

Framework chapter 3 “Strategies for Geographic Planning Areas – 

http://www.metrocouncil.org/planning/framewor/documents.htm.) 

including the relationship of the project to community development plans 

and objectives e.g. intensification of centers, mixed use development, 

development staging, and/or redevelopment/infill plans. 

RESPONSE: The TH 149 corridor presently serves an important role in the regional roadway 

network as an “A” minor arterial route relieving traffic on I-35E and TH 55.  Currently, the 

majority of land uses directly adjacent to and near TH 149 include mainly industrial and office 

developments.  As mentioned in the Grand Oak Business Park AUAR Update, Northeast Eagan 

Areawide Traffic Study and Lone Oak Business Campus Traffic Study, substantial future 

development is expected in the northeast part of the city.  These areas of development will rely on 

the TH 149 corridor for local and regional access.  Future land use includes additional office and 

commercial developments. 

 

The TH 149 corridor will also continue to play a vital role in serving north-south traffic in the 

City of Eagan.  The proposed improvements will provide safer operations for the traffic accessing 

the office and retail nodes, as well as the I-494 and TH 55 regional transportation systems.  North 

of I-494 between TH 149 and CR 63, future plans include the redevelopment of single-family 

residential housing units to multi-family residential in the City of Mendota heights.  By 

improving the operations at the TH 149/I-494 interchange, the proposed project will help the 

corridor serve the more intense land uses planned along and near the corridor. 

http://www.metrocouncil.org/planning/framewor/documents.htm


 

 14 

 

 

Land use intensification is born out of traffic analysis zones (TAZs) located adjacent to and near 

the project corridor.  The table below shows the household and employment data for 2006/2007 

and 2030 TAZs adjacent to the TH 149 corridor in Eagan.  (It should be noted that the City of 

Eagan‟s employment forecasts for 2030 exceed the Met Council system statement.  The City and 

Met Council are in the process of reconciling the Citywide employment numbers.) 

 

 

TAZ # 

2007 

HH 

2030 

HH 

Number 

Increase 

2006 

Employ 

2030 

Employ 

Number 

Increase 

258 4 4 0 3,546 4,746 1,200 

259 6 7 1 4,584 13,746 9,162 

Total 

Corridor 
10 11 1 8,130 18,492 10,362 

 

Zone 258 is adjacent to the TH 149 (west) and Zone 259 is adjacent to TH 149 (east).  Planned 

growth along the TH 149 route results in 1 additional households.  Contrastingly, employment 

growth increases by 10,362 by the year 2030.  Zone 259 shows the greatest amount of 

employment growth (increase of 9,162), which corresponds to the increase in land use to fully 

developed with retail, office, and commercial areas. 

 

The City‟s Comprehensive Plan shows many areas adjacent to the corridor as either being vacant 

or underutilized.  The areas east and west of TH 149 show that some of the area is vacant and the 

land use maps indicate these areas will be mostly office and retail development.  The proposed 

roadway improvements will be able to support the land use intensification as these areas fully 

develop. 

 

The City of Eagan has completed three studies related to the project area:  1) Northeast Eagan 

Areawide Traffic Study; 2) Transportation Infrastructure Needs Analysis (TINA); and 3) Lone 

Oak Business Campus Traffic Study.  The Northeast Eagan Areawide Study examined the traffic 

impacts on roadways of development directly adjacent to the corridor.  According to the 

Northeast Eagan Areawide Study, which incorporates some development in the Grand Oak 

Business Park, the proposed developments are anticipated to generate a significant amount of 

traffic (about 74,000 additional daily trips) with the office/clinics and retail land uses.  Because 

the proposed development is anticipated to generate a large amount of traffic, the study 

recommends that TH 149 be a six-lane facility (see Attachment B). 

 

The City of Eagan has also completed a Transportation Infrastructure Needs Analysis (TINA), 

which looks at the City‟s future transportation needs.  The TINA helps the City determine future 

transportation projects based on traffic studies, and city, county, and state transportation 

improvement plans.  The TINA includes this project as one of the City‟s short-term projects to 

provide the increase in capacity to meet the needs of additional growth along the corridor over the 

next 20 years.  The proposed project will support and anticipate the intensification of these 

developments. 

 

Finally, the Lone Oak Business Campus Traffic Study examined the impact of an 85 acre 

office/warehouse development located approximately 0.8 miles east of TH 149.  The proposed 

development utilizes TH 149 for access to the regional transportation network.  The results of the 

study found that TH 149 will need to be expanded to a six-lane facility (three lanes in each 

direction) from TH 55 to the I-494 north ramp to accommodate additional regional traffic. 

 



 

 15 

 

The City of Inver Grove Heights has completed an Alternative Urban Areawide Review (AUAR) 

that discusses land use changes in the northwest portion of the city, which is adjacent to proposed 

development in the northeast portion of Eagan (see Attachment B, Inver Grove Heights AUAR).  

Proposed land uses in Inver Grove Heights include low-density, medium-density, and high-

density residential, office, industrial, and commercial developments.  This development is 

expected to generate over 90,000 trips per day, some of which will use TH 149 between TH 55 

and I-494.  The proposed development in Inver Grove Heights will impact TH 149 with 

additional traffic along the project corridor.  These developments, both in Eagan and Inver Grove 

Heights, will rely heavily on the TH 149 corridor for local and regional access.  The proposed 

project will provide a stronger local link between the Cities of Eagan and Inver Grove Heights 

and stronger regional link to other surrounding areas and help support the intensification of the 

proposed developments. 

 

c) Council staff will provide the following information to assist in the 

evaluation of this criterion: 

TAZ Project Area demographic profile: 

Population:  2000, 2010, 2020, 2030 

Households:  2000, 2010, 2020, 2030 

Employment:  2000, 2010, 2020, 2030 

Retail Employment:  2000, 2010, 2020, 2030 

TAZ Project Area land use profile: 

o Acreage by existing land use category 

o Planned land use (summarized from local comprehensive plans) 

 

2. Natural Resources 

 

0-45 points A project will score higher if sensitive natural resources are avoided and if “best 

management” practices are employed in project implementation beyond which is 

minimally required by law.  Describe in a brief narrative how the project relates to 

identified regional natural resource areas and any local community natural resource 

inventory and reference attached map(s).  If the project has potential for assisting 

restoration or has a potential adverse impact, describe the resource, impact and what 

implementation practices will be employed. For identified natural resource areas go 

to (http://gis.metc.state.mn.us/topics/nrda/index.asp). 

RESPONSE: The proposed project will not impact any identified natural resource areas.  When 

the proposed project is designed, all efforts will be taken to ensure that there are no or minimal 

impacts to natural resources in the project area.  Best management practices with regard to 

construction will be employed to reduce impacts from runoff and other issues that occur during 

construction.  Also, new construction can provide better mitigation than older roadways for 

runoff and other drainage issues.  Therefore, when TH 149 is upgraded to a six-lane facility, 

drainage and roadway runoff can be minimized or even prevented, which would result in a better 

quality natural area. 

 

The proposed project will increase the capacity and through mobility along the TH 149 corridor, 

providing better connections to civic centers in the area.  Civic centers in the area include schools 

and parks.  For example, Trinity Lutheran Church, a private school, is located near the 

intersection of TH 149 and TH 55, which is also a historic site. 

 

The roadway connects to many parks and lakes north of the project corridor.  The proposed 

project will improve the operations at the TH 149/I-494 interchange, which is an important 

http://gis.metc.state.mn.us/topics/nrda/index.asp


 

 16 

 

connection to the parks and civic areas north of the project corridor.  Adjacent to TH 149 is the 

Mendakota Park, a 19-acre community park that has many amenities including softball fields, 

basketball and volleyball courts, a picnic shelter and paved walking paths within the park.  Just 

north of the Mendakota Park is the Mendakota Golf Course.  The Friendly Marsh Park, located 

near the project corridor, is a natural area that attracts a variety of wildlife and is adjacent to the 

Dodge Nature Center.  The Dodge Nature Center is over 300 acres and offers a variety of 

activities and natural areas.  Activities range from school programs to hiking to tours.  Natural 

areas include prairies, marsh lands, ponds, orchards, and woodlands.  The Dodge Nature Center 

also offers classroom spaces to teach children about various topics and has other buildings that 

house many animals. 

 

In addition, the Saint Thomas Academy is located just west of TH 149 in Mendota Heights, along 

Mendota Heights Road.  The Academy is a Catholic, all-male, college-preparatory military 

school for grades 7 through 12.  East of the Saint Thomas Academy is the Visitation School, 

which is a Catholic School for boys and girls in Montessori preschool through sixth grade and a 

college preparatory school for young women in grades seven through twelve.  Both schools are 

for students in the Twin Cities area. 
 

3. Progress Towards Affordable Housing Goals 

 

NOTE: Information and analysis in this section will be provided by Council staff. 

 

0-30 points Up to 30 points can be awarded to a project, based upon a community‟s or group of 

communities‟ progress in addressing their affordable housing goals for 1996-2010. 

  

For communities that participate in the Livable Communities Local Housing 

Incentives Program, data from their 1996-2010 negotiated housing goals will be 

used to determine the progress they have made toward providing opportunities to 

their address affordable housing goals. 

 

For communities that do not participate in the Local Housing Incentives Program, 

progress will be measured against what the benchmarks were for their community in 

the Council‟s LCA goal setting methodology used in determining goals for 1996 to 

2010. 

 

Example of Analysis: 

 

Benchmark or 

Ownership Goal 

Progress Made to 

Date 

Benchmark or 

Rental Goal 

Progress Made to 

Date 

Average 

Progress Made 

900 units 200 units (22%) 200 units 125 units (63%) 43% 

 

Percent of Progress Made:                    Points Awarded: 

85-100%                                                           30 

65-85%                                                             25 

45-65%                                                             20 

25-45%                                                             15 

10-25%                                                             10          

1-10%                                                               5 

 

4. Land Use and Access Management Planning 

 



 

 17 

 

The Development Framework includes support for connected land use patterns served by an 

integrated street network. Access management along highways is a key component of planning 

for these objectives.  In addition, various access management strategies can reduce crashes, 

improve traffic flow, and add operational capacity for the applicable roadway. Higher scores will 

be given to projects that are developed using a local access management plan and to projects 

located in communities that have a regulatory framework established to protect and improve 

access control in the future. Additional points will be awarded to projects that implement these 

plans by reducing undesired access points. 

 

0-50 points Reference and describe the local access management plan used to develop the 

proposed project, and describe the corresponding county or state access management 

plan which supports the regional road network. Higher scores will be awarded to 

projects developed with an approach that is consistent with county or state access 

management plans. 

RESPONSE: TH 149 is a state highway and is under the Minnesota Department of 

Transportation‟s jurisdiction.  The plan uses access management guidelines developed by 

Mn/DOT (see Attachment C).  According to Mn/DOT‟s guidelines, TH 149 is a Category 5B, 

which is a minor arterial in an urban/urbanizing area. 

 

Mn/DOT‟s access guidelines are the focus for the corridor‟s access management plan.  The 

recommended spacing for “A” minor arterials in urbanizing areas is shown in Attachment A, 

Figure 6.  In general, full-access signalized intersections may be placed at quarter-mile (1,320 

feet) spacing and secondary access or right-in/right-out access can be spaced an eighth of a mile 

(660 feet) apart.  Private driveway access is subject to exceptions and deviations. 

 

Existing and proposed access along TH 149 in the project area shown in Attachment A, Figure 7, 

is consistent with Mn/DOT access management guidelines.  No additional access is anticipated in 

the future. 

 

  Provide and identify intersection spacing and signal spacing guidelines, and 

driveway allowance criteria used for the proposed project and the corresponding 

county or state access management guidelines. 

RESPONSE: Mn/DOT‟s access guidelines are the focus for the corridor‟s access management 
plan.  In general, full-access signalized intersections may be placed at quarter-mile (1,320 feet) 
spacing and secondary access or right-in/right-out access can be spaced an eighth of a mile (660 
feet) apart.  Private driveway access is subject to exceptions and deviations. 

 

5. Land Use and Access Management Planning 

 

0-50 points Having the necessary regulatory framework is essential for protecting the efficient 

functioning of the regional roadway network.   Reference (adoption date) and 

describe the local zoning and subdivision ordinance regulations that are in place to 

maintain the access plan as adjacent properties are developed and/or redeveloped. 

Higher scores will be awarded to projects in communities with existing or proposed 

local support of the access management plan through existing regulations or 

ordinances. 

RESPONSE: The City of Eagan adopted Mn/DOT‟s access spacing guidelines via the 
Transportation Section of its Comprehensive Plan.  The City Council approved the 2008 update 
to the Comprehensive Plan on May 19, 2009. 



 

 18 

 

 

6. Corridor Access Management Improvements 

 

0-50 points Projects that help to implement the access management plan by removing or 

modifying non-conforming access points will receive points in this criterion. 

Identify the access locations and access management that currently exists and that 

will be allowed once the project is completed. Indicate by the following 

classifications, the existing access locations inconsistent with the proposed access 

management approach and any access locations that will be modified: 

 

The existing access points are in conformance with Mn/DOT‟s access management guidelines.  

Upon completion of the project, Mn/DOT‟s access management guidelines will continue to be 

implemented along the project corridor. 

 

a. Private Residential Driveways/Field Entrances 

RESPONSE: The TH 149 project corridor does not contain any existing non-conforming private 
residential driveways or field entrances. 

b. Low-Volume Private Driveways * (Under 500 trips per day) 

RESPONSE: The TH 149 project corridor does not contain any existing low-volume private 
driveways. 

c. High-Volume Private Driveways * (Over 500 trips per day) 

RESPONSE: The TH 149 project corridor does not contain any existing high-volume private 
driveways. 

d. Public Streets  

RESPONSE: The current intersection spacing for public streets is in conformance with 
Mn/DOT‟s access guidelines. 

*  Private driveways may be commercial, industrial or institutional uses such as school or hospitals. 

 

7. Integration of Modes 

 

0-125 points The Transportation Policy Plan places importance on investing in multimodal 

transportation choices and supports the development of a transportation system that 

accommodates the mobility needs of users of all modes including motorists, transit 

vehicles and riders, pedestrians of all levels of functional ability, bicyclists and 

freight movers. “A” Minor Relievers are located parallel to congested principal 

arterials in the core, urban reserve and urban staging areas. Many of these roadways 

are served by transit and accommodate travel to congested activity centers and 

others provide important medium length routes parallel to principal arterials that 

may be inaccessible to non-motorized travelers. “A” Minor Relievers also play an 

important role in the movement of freight because they add capacity to freight 

origins and destinations. 

 

Please provide the information requested below on the existing conditions and 

proposed changes to the roadway environment and include maps, schematics or 

cross-sections as appropriate. Please note that all projects that receive STP funding 

must meet the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). If the 

project does not include any multimodal components or does not impact one or 

more modes of travel, it is only necessary to answer questions related to the existing 



 

 19 

 

conditions for each mode. Evaluation of this criterion will be based on the degree to 

which multimodal transportation objectives are incorporated into the project. The 

appropriate extent and character of multimodal improvements may differ based on 

the role that the road serves and differing roadway conditions that can affect its 

design. 

 

Transit: 
Roadway projects can support transit service by improving accessibility to transit 

stops by pedestrians, installing bus stop amenities for passengers, placing bus stops 

on the far side of intersections and improving the pedestrian environment, 

particularly for people with disabilities. In some cases, other improvements to the 

roadway including curb bump-outs for bus stops or the construction of bus lanes can 

improve transit service reliability and speed along the segment. Projects will not be 

evaluated based on the existence of transit service but rather how the needs of transit 

vehicles and passengers are incorporated into the project if transit service exists.  

 

Existing Conditions: 

Is there transit service and/or stops along the segment of the project? 

RESPONSE: Transit service utilizes TH 149 for access service points 
within the Grand Oak Business Campus and the Water‟s Corporate 
Complex, but does not offer stops along the project corridor. 

If so, provide a map that shows the current placement of bus stops along the 

segment. If not, the project will be evaluated solely on the non-motorized and 

freight components of this criterion. 

 

Describe transit stop compliance with current ADA Accessibility Guidelines if 

applicable (curb ramps, boarding and alighting areas and accessible connections to 

sidewalks and streets). 

RESPONSE: Not applicable 

Changes to Conditions from the Project: 

How will the project affect transit service or the conditions for transit riders along 

the project segment? 

RESPONSE: Not applicable 

Pedestrians: 
Roadway projects can be opportunities to improve the environment for pedestrian 

activity that occurs or may occur in the project area. Improvements to the pedestrian 

environment include the construction or reconstruction of walkways or multi-use 

paths, separating pedestrian walkways from vehicle traffic through the installation 

of a buffer such as a boulevard and providing lighting. Equally important to 

improving pedestrian movement along the project area is improving the safety and 

ease of pedestrian crossings of the roadway. Some examples of these kinds of 

improvements are installation of pedestrian countdown signals, marking crosswalks, 

reducing the effective crossing distance for pedestrians by installing curb extensions 

and pedestrian medians, and by influencing the speed of vehicles making turning 

movements at intersections. Different treatments are appropriate for different types 

of roadway conditions. 

 

Provide information on the existing conditions for pedestrians in the project area: 



 

 20 

 

 

Provide a map or aerial photo/schematic that shows all existing pedestrian 

walkways, multi-use paths and signalized and unsignalized pedestrian crossings in 

the project area. 

 

See Figures 8-10, Attachment A for details on existing pedestrian facilities. 

 

Describe or show on a map how the walkways or multi-use paths are connected to a 

wider pedestrian network beyond the project area. Describe destinations in the 

network such as schools, residential areas, transit stops, etc. within a half-mile of the 

project area: 

RESPONSE:  The existing pedestrian facilities within 0.5 miles of the 
project area consist of an off-roadway trail systems located in the Grand 
Oak business campus (west side of TH 149, between TH 55 and I-494), in 
The Waters Corporate Complex (east side of TH 149, between TH 55 and I-
494) and along Mendota Heights Road in the City of Mendota Heights.  No 
pedestrian facilities currently exist along the proposed project corridor. 

Briefly describe the pedestrian environment along the walkways in the project area 

including landscaping, roadway/walkway buffers, lighting, etc.. If markedly 

different conditions exist along different parts of the roadway segment, describe 

them separately paying particular attention to existing deficiencies that will be 

addressed by the project. If a there are bridges along the project section, describe the 

pedestrian condition on and approaching the bridge. 

RESPONSE: No pedestrian facilities currently exist along the proposed 
project corridor.  

Provide information on changes to the pedestrian environment from the project and 

provide a plan or schematic if one has been developed: 

 

See Figure 4, Attachment A for details on the proposed multiuse trail. 

 

Describe methods that will be used to facilitate safer and more pleasant pedestrian 

movement alongside the roadway 

RESPONSE: The proposed project includes the construction of a 10-foot 
wide multiuse, bituminous trail separated from the TH 149 shoulder by a 
grass boulevard.  The trail will have 2-foot wide shoulders and will be 
designed to a 20-mph design speed.  The trail is proposed to be constructed 
on the west side of TH 149 to reduce the number of roadway crossings and 
eliminate bicycle/vehicle interactions at the I-494 north and south ramps.  
The existing bridge has a concrete barrier separating vehicular traffic from 
bicyclists who choose to use the trail.   

Describe methods that will be used to facilitate safer pedestrian crossings of the 

roadway 

RESPONSE: All street crossings will occur at controlled (i.e. traffic signal) 
intersections with painted crosswalks.  Traffic signal design will follow 
Mn/DOT trunk highway design standards and may include pedestrian 
countdown indicators if allowed 

If there are any new walkways or multi-use paths to be constructed with this project, 

will they be connected to an existing wider pedestrian network beyond the project 

area? Describe or show on a map destinations in this network such as schools, 



 

 21 

 

residential areas, transit stops, etc. within a half-mile of the project area. (If the 

project only includes reconstruction of existing pathways described above, do not 

answer this question.) 

RESPONSE: The proposed multiuse trail will provide improved 
connections to the existing pedestrian facilities in The Waters and Grand 
Oak employment areas located immediately adjacent to the project corridor.  
The proposed multiuse trail will also connect to an off-street trail system in 
Mendota Heights.  The off-street Mendota Heights trail system connects to 
several schools, including St. Thomas Academy, Visitation and Friendly 
Hills Middles School. 

Bicyclists: 
Roadway projects can be an opportunity to improve the conditions for bicycle travel 

along and crossing the corridor. Examples of ways to improve the bicycling 

environment include installing bike lanes or 5 foot marked shoulders, off-road paths 

where conditions favor them, and intersection treatments designed to reduce motor 

vehicle and bicycle conflict. 

 

Provide information on the existing conditions for bicyclists in the project area: 

 

Provide a map or aerial photo/schematic that shows all existing bicycle facilities 

along the roadway segment (off-road trails, multi-use paths, bike lanes, marked 

shoulders, unmarked shoulders, and bicycle accessible crossings of the roadway) as 

well as any regional trail that intersects with the project segment. 

 

See Figures 8-10, Attachment A for details on existing bicycle facilities. 

 

Provide information on changes to the bicycling environment from the project and 

provide a plan or schematic if one has been developed: 

 

See Figure 4, Attachment A for details on the proposed multiuse trail. 

 

Describe methods that will be used to facilitate safer and more convenient bicycle 

travel along the roadway segment (pathway construction, bike lane striping, 

shoulder improvements, improved accommodation on bridges etc.). If a project plan 

has been developed that shows the location of improvements, please provide it as 

well. 

RESPONSE: The proposed project includes the construction of a 10-foot 
wide multiuse, bituminous trail separated from the TH 149 shoulder by a 
grass boulevard.  The trail will have 2-foot wide shoulders and will be 
designed to a 20-mph design speed.  The trail is proposed to be constructed 
on the west side of TH 149 to reduce the number of roadway crossings and 
eliminate bicycle/vehicle interactions at the I-494 north and south ramps.  
The existing bridge has a concrete barrier separating vehicular traffic from 
bicyclists who choose to use the trail.  All street crossings will occur at 
controlled (i.e. traffic signal) intersections with painted crosswalks.  Traffic 
signal design will follow Mn/DOT trunk highway design standards and may 
include pedestrian countdown indicators if allowed.   

The proposed project will also improve the traveling conditions for 
bicyclists who choose to ride on the roadway shoulder.  Currently, the 
shoulder pavement is aged and rough for use by a bicycle.  The proposed 



 

 22 

 

project will construct a new bituminous shoulder providing a better riding 
surface for bicyclists who choose to ride on the shoulder. 

 

Does the bikeway included in this project connect to an existing official bikeway 

network? Describe destinations in the network that are or will be accessible by 

bicycle, such as schools, residential areas, employment areas, regional trails and 

parks etc. within one mile of the project area. 

RESPONSE: No official bikeway network exists in this area.  However, the 
proposed multiuse trail would connect to an off-street trail system in 
Mendota Heights.  The off-street Mendota Heights trail system connects to 
several schools, including St. Thomas Academy, Visitation and Friendly 
Hills Middles School.  The proposed multiuse trail will also provide 
improved connections to The Waters and Grand Oak employment areas 
located immediately adjacent to the project corridor. 

The proposed multiuse trail would also connect to an on-roadway 
(unmarked, wide shoulder) route which continues north on TH 149 and 
links to numerous trails, parks and lakes in Mendota Heights.  Construction 
of the proposed multiuse trail would provide an improved connection 
through the City of Eagan to the North Urban Regional Trail in Mendota 
Heights at TH 149 and TH 110. 

 

Freight: 
Roadway projects that are located in important freight moving areas and that aim to 

improve freight movement will receive higher scores in this criterion. 

 

What is the current daily heavy commercial traffic along the project segment? 

RESPONSE: According to Mn/DOT‟s 2006 Trunk Highway Traffic 
Volumes map, the current heavy commercial average daily traffic along the 
project segment is 720 vehicles per day. 

Is the roadway used to access any of the regional intermodal freight terminals in 

Appendix J? If so, please list them: 

RESPONSE: Adjacent land uses to the project corridor currently include 
industrial uses with high volumes of truck traffic. 

Most of the trucking activity occurs in the northern 1/3 of the City with 
concentrations along TH 149 (i.e. Thomson Reuters, UPS) and along TH 
13.  Thomson Reuters and UPS are located on TH 149, south of TH 55.  
Thomson Reuters recently expanded their facilities to include more 
warehouse and manufacturing uses, generating additional truck traffic than 
what had previously existed.  Many of the trucks destined for these 
locations, and to other locations within the city, will use the portion of TH 
149 between I-494 and TH 55 as the main, direct route to these locations 
because it provides convenient access to the regional highway system.  
Also, in 1997, the City adopted the Trucking Study Report that identifies 
several key truck-oriented routes in Eagan.  The routes include all state 
trunk highways, which includes TH 149.  Again, much of the truck traffic 
within Eagan uses the project segment of TH 149 to access I-494. 

 



 

 23 

 

Does the road connect any of the terminals to a freeway? If so, describe the route: 

RESPONSE:  The proposed project provides a direct connection to I-494.  
By improving safety and adding capacity to the TH 149 corridor and I-494 
interchange, the movement of goods and freight to and from these facilities 
will be enhanced. 

 

E. Maturity of Project Concept. 100 points 

Projects selected through this solicitation will be programmed for construction in 2013 or 2014.  That is a 

fairly long time but it takes several years to complete preliminary engineering, environmental studies and 

acquire right-of-way.  The region must manage the federal funds in each year of the TIP.  Projects that are 

not implemented in their original program year create problems.  Proposed projects that have already 

completed some of the work is a plus.  A schedule is important to know what kind of work might be 

needed.  Large projects that need right-of-way require more work than others that do not. 

 

0-100 points Applications involving construction must complete the project implementation 

schedule found in Appendix K.  A detailed schedule of events is expected for all 

phases of the project.  Applications involving non-construction projects must 

include a detailed discussion of the timeframes involved for initiating and 

completing each phase of planned activities.  Points under this criterion are 

assigned based on how many steps have been taken toward implementation of the 

project.  These steps reflect a federally funded project development path. 

RESPONSE: In addition to the numerous studies that have been completed regarding this project, 

a preliminary layout and draft Project Memorandum have also been completed.  Please refer to 

Appendix K in Attachment E for a project of the development checklist.  The schedule identified 

in Appendix K is achievable and able to be accelerated if needed. 

 

TOTAL: 1,250 POINTS  
 

 
 



"A" Minor Arterial Reliever - Prioritizing Criteria Scores 2009

A.1. B.1. B.2. B.3. C.1. C.2. C.3. D.1. D.2. D-3 D-4 D-5 D-6 D-7 E.1. Total
0-100 0-100 0-100 0-150 0-125 0-75 0-75 0-75 0-45 0-30 0-50 0-50 0-50 0-125 0-100 Points

AR-09-10 Ramsey County CSAH 49/TH 36 Interchange $7,000,000 $13,500,000 100 84 100 105 119 24 56 47 10 25 50 20 23 70 100 933

AR-09-01 Anoka County
CSAH 51 (University Ave) 
Reconstruction $6,120,000 $1,530,000 75 30 85 118 102 44 75 45 45 20 50 50 38 103 43 923

AR-09-05 Hennepin County
CSAH 61 (Shady Oak Rd) 
Reconstruction $7,000,000 $3,000,000 69 28 53 58 108 33 40 56 8 25 45 45 45 79 86 778

AR-09-06 Eagan TH 149 Reconstruction $2,480,000 $620,000 90 30 64 22 125 75 65 40 7 25 50 40 0 58 86 777
AR-09-07 West St Paul Robert Street Improvements $7,000,000 $3,383,000 99 50 70 37 123 25 50 54 7 30 50 10 50 57 50 762

AR-09-03 Hennepin County
CSAH 5 (Franklin Ave) at E River 
Pkwy Intersection Reconstruction $4,000,000 $1,000,000 80 34 36 58 34 44 29 70 7 25 45 45 27 69 50 653

AR-09-08 Richfield CSAH 53 Reconstruction $4,498,000 $1,124,000 74 24 43 0 102 0 46 60 7 25 25 10 40 104 43 603

AR-09-04 Hennepin County
CSAH 3 (Excelsior Blvd) 
Reconstruction $7,000,000 $3,000,000 85 55 21 15 67 0 9 62 7 20 45 45 28 86 40 585

AR-09-02 Maple Grove
TH 169 & CSAH 130/152 
Interchange Reconstruction $7,000,000 $6,410,000 92 12 58 25 0 12 38 75 28 20 45 35 13 76 39 568

AR-09-09 Richfield
CSAH 35 (Portland Av) 
Reconstruction $1,325,408 $331,352 80 30 2 23 0 0 2 63 7 25 10 10 0 91 50 393

TOTAL FEDERAL FUNDS $53,423,408 $33,898,352

A.1.
B.1.
B.2.
B.3.
C.1.
C.2.
C.3.
D.1.
D.2.
D-3
D-4
D-5
D-6
D-7
E.1.

prioritizing criteria
match $project no. federal $ project nameapplicant

Relative Importance of Route
Crash Reduction
Air Quality
Congestion Reduction
Crash Reduction Cost Effectiveness
Congestion Reduction Cost Effectiveness
Air Quality Cost Effectiveness
Development Framework Planning Area Objectives

Access Management Improvements
Integration of Modes
Maturity of Project Concept

Natural Resources
Progress Toward Affordable Housing Goals
Land Use And Access Mgmt Planning
Land Use And Access Mgmt Regulatory Framework









 
 

 
 
 

Karl Keel 
March 2, 2012 
Page 4 
 
 
LIST OF PROJECTS 

 
 

SEQ # 
STATE 
FISCAL 
YEAR 

A
T
P 

ROUTE 
SYSTEM 

PROJECT 
NUMBER 
(S.P. #) 

(Fed # if available) 

AGENCY 
DESCRIPTION 

include location, description of all work, & 
city (if applicable) 

MILES PROG 
TYPE OF 

WORK 
PROP 

FUNDS 
TOTAL 

$ 
FHWA 

$ 
AC 
$ 

FTA 
$ 

TH 
$ 

OTHER 
$ 

AIR 
QUALITY 

CONFORMITY 

 2012 M RR 13-00001 MnDOT RR X-ing at West 8th Street 
in Rush City – Replace 
antiquated equipment 
(Gates) 

0.0 SR RR X-ing 
Improve
ments 

RRS $175,000 $5,000 0 0 0 $170,000 
(State Rail 

Bonds) 

S-8 

 2012 M RR 27-00306 MnDOT RR X-ing at Lyndale Ave in 
Minneapolis – Replace 
antiquated equipment 
(Cantilevers & Gates 

0.0 SR RR X-ing 
Improve
ments 

RRS $275,000 $5,000 0 00 0 $270,000 
(State Rail 

Bonds) 

S-8 

 2012 M RR 27-00307 MnDOT RR X-ing at West 86th Street in 
Bloomington – Replace 
antiquated equipment (LED 
Cantilever Flashers) 

0.0 SR RR X-ing 
Improve
ments 

RRS $225,000 $5,000 0 0 0 $220,000 
(State Rail 

Bonds) 

S-8 

 2012 M RR 62-00206 MnDOT RR X-ing at Wabash Ave in St. 
Paul – Replace antiquated 
equipment (Cantilevers) 

0.0 SR RR X-ing 
Improve
ments 

RRS $200,000 $5,000 0 0 0 $195,000 
(State Rail 

Bonds) 

S-8 

 2012 M RR 62-00207 MnDOT RR X-ing at Mrytle Ave in St. Paul 
– Replace antiquated equipment 
(Cantilevers) 

0.0 SR RR X-ing 
Improve
ments 

RRS $200,000 $5,000 0 0 0 $195,000 
(State Rail 

Bonds) 

S-8 











02/14/12 
 

2013-2016 TIP/STIP ADOPTION Draft SCHEDULE 
 
 

DATE ITEM ORGANIZATION ACTION/TOPIC 
2012    
March 8 TIP Schedule/Public input process TAC – F&PC  Mail to TAC F&PC 
March 15 TIP Schedule/Public input process TAC – F&PC  Review and accept TIP 

adoption schedule 
March 26 TIP Schedule/Public input 

process 
MnDOT MPC  Approve Schedule 

April 4 TIP Schedule/Public input process TAC  TAC reviews TIP 
schedule, recommends to 
TAB 

April 9 
April 12 

Draft 2013-2016 TIP MC Staff  Mail to TAC F&PC 
 Mail to MPCA to start 

conformity review 
April 13 
 

Investment Discussions CIC  Review MnDOT’s 
Investment decisions 

April 16 Draft ATIP to OCPPM Metro Program 
Mgmt. 

 Submit ATIP to 
OCPPM for inclusion 
in STIP 

April 18 TIP Schedule/Public input process TAB  Reviews and adopts TIP 
schedule and public 
input process 

April 19 Draft 2013-2016 TIP TAC – F&PC  MnDOT summary of 
elements and changes 

 Recommend to TAC 
April 23  MnDOT MPC  Review comments 

May 2 Draft 2013-2016 TIP TAC  Recommends to TAB for 
purpose of public 
meeting and comment 

May 14  CIC   
May 16 Draft 2013-2016 TIP TAB  Adopts Draft TIP and 

sets public hearing date 
 MPCA letter of 

comment included 
 Public comment period 

starts 
 Input process – notice in 

State Register 
May 21  MnDOT MPC   
June 15  CIC   
June 25  MnDOT MPC   
July 6 45 – day public comment period 

ends 
   

July 9 Final ATIP to OCPPM Metro Program 
Mgmt. 

 Submit ATIP to 
OCPPM for inclusion 
in STIP 

July 12 Prepare Public Hearing Report 
Draft TIP revised to address public 

MC staff and TAB 
staff prepares 

 Mail to TAC F&PC 
 

N:\MTS\Working\TABTAC\TAC F&PC\2012 Packet Materials\March\2013_16draft schedule with MPO 
Coordination.doc  

1



N:\MTS\Working\TABTAC\TAC F&PC\2012 Packet Materials\March\2013_16draft schedule with MPO 
Coordination.doc  

2

comment 
July 19 Public Hearing Report and Final 

TIP 
TAC F&PC  Review and recommend 

August 1 Public Hearing Report and Final 
TIP 

TAC   Review and recommend 
 

August 15 Public Hearing Report and Final 
TIP 

TAB  Adopts Public Hearing 
Report and Final TIP 
and forwards to MC. 

August 27 Final TIP MC Transportation 
Committee 

 Review and recommends 
to MC 

September 12 Final TIP Met Council 
 

 Adopts, forwards to 
MnDOT 

 Forwards TIP Checklist 
to MnDOT Metro 

 
September   
         20 

Final 2013-2016 STIP MnDOT TPIC Approve STIP 

September 
27 

Concurrence Memo  and TIP 
Checklist to OCCPM  

Metro Program 
Mgmt. 

 Verify federal 
requirements met 

September-
October 

Regional TIP is incorporated into 
State TIP 

MN/DOT Central 
Office 

 Forwarded to federal 
agencies 

September-
November 

Conformity Determination by 
Federal Agencies 

FHWA/FTA/EPA  Reviews and 
Recommends Approval 

November STIP Approved FHWA  Approve STIP 
 
 


	031512- Agenda
	Thursday, March 15, 2012

	021612FnPMinutes
	031512_AgendaItem5_TH149ScopeChange
	Scope Change Request for TH 149 on 3-02-12
	Pages from AR0906 TRUNK HWY 149 STP APPLICATION
	2009 Reliever Scores

	031512AgendaItem6_railprojects_TIPamendment
	AgedaItem7SP138-010-018 TH 36 Maplewood
	AgendaItem8_TIP Schedule
	April 13
	April 16
	July 9




